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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Dill House in Fort Gaines, Georgia, was built ¢.1830, by General
John Dill. 1In the 1890's, Mrs. S. R. Raymur bought the house, remodelled it
in the Victorian style, and added a number of rooms. It has served as a hotel
ever since that time.

The Dill House has a 3-bayed, double verandah supported by four square
columns that have been replaced by circular concrete posts. The balusters ar
of Victorian design and part of the second floor verandah has collapsed. The
three bays have corresponding gables, two large gables with gingerbread detail
separated by a smaller gable with carved designs. The exterior is weather-
boarded and has been painted white.

The front door is trabeated and opens on to a long, wide central hall.
Thin floor boards run diagonally down the hall and in the middle of the hall
is a carved Victorian decoration of spools, spandrels and medallion variations
hanging from the ceiling. On both sides of the central hall are thin boards
of heavily varnished wainscotting. A narrow Victorian staircase leads to a
second floor landing and there are three more stairs from the landing to the
second floor central hall.

Due to the Victorian alterations in the 1890's, it is not easy to deter-
mine exactly which rooms were part of the house built by General Dill, but
it appears that each of the rooms off of the downstairs central hall, with
the exception of the dining room, and one room on either side of the second
floor stair landing are the earliest portions of the house. Each of these
"original" rooms has a simple wide floor board and plain frames around the
windows and doors. Between the first and second rooms on the right side of
the first floor are four tall panelled doors that connect the two rooms. The
front room has an early mantelpiece that appears to have been done by a local
craftsman. It consists of a three part frieze with a sunburst in the center
and the mantel shelf is supported by engaged columns. The front room on the
left side of the house is one of the original rooms, but thin boards of
heavily varnished wainscotting (like the central hall wainscotting) have been
added that belong to the 20th century. On the second floor, the front rooms
on either side of the landing were part of the original house. Each room
has simple panelled wainscotting, painted white, that matches the heavily
varnished wainscotting on the stair landing. Early mantelpieces of a simpli-
fied Adamesque variation with three part panelled friezes and engaged columns
are in both of these rooms.

Above the stair landing, there are eight more rooms off of the central
hall that were part of the hotel addition. All these rooms are identical in
their decoration including window and door frames with carved, circular
designs, transom lights over the door, and Victorian mantel pleces. Similar
to these rooms is the dining room downstairs at the left end of the central
hall. Carved flower designs in its door and window frames and intricately
carved vine and leaf patterns in the thin boards of wainscotting make the
dining room the most detailed room in the house. The floor boards are identi
cal to the diagonal pattern of the central hall. Several more rooms extend
beyond the dining room but these are shed-types and even later additions.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The house of General John Dill is significant because it is one of the
oldest remaining houses in the pioneer settlement of Fort Gaines, Not only
was General Dill a prominent citizen and original settler of Fort Gaines,
but several legends about him have passed down to the present day and are
important to the local "history'" of Fort Gaines.

Dill came to Georgia in 1817 as a military aide to General Edmund P.
Gaines. General Gaines placed him in command of Fort Gaines, a stronghold
on the Georgia bamnk of the Chattahoochee River designed to protect the river
and hold the Indians at bay in west Florida and south Alabama. After the
cession of Indian lands in 1826 Fort Gaines was no longer needed as a militany
outpost and General Dill retired from active service. He then became one of
the first merchants in Fort Gaines, along with his partner John W. Sutlive,
by establishing a mercantile store. A tannery, brick kiln and yard, and
cotton warehouses were later added to Dill's business interests. Dill was
a member of the first grand jury in Early County, and served as Justice of
the Inferior Court from 1829 until his resignation in 1832, The Georgia
legislature elected General Dill the Brigadier General of the Militia and
for several years Dill was an aide to Governor Lumpkin. General Dill was
also active in the Methodist Church which was organized in Fort Gaines in
1822. Services were held at General Dill's house "for years" but it is not
certain if this is the same house because the site of the present Dill hous
was not purchased until 1829 by Dill and his partner Sutlive. )

There are several long standing legends about General Dill and his
house, both concerning Indians. Dill's wife was captured by the Indians as
a young girl and protected by the Indian Chief because she was so beautiful.
When the Indians raided white settlements the girl hoarded the paper money
in her skirt that the Indians discarded in favor of pieces of gold. When
she finally escaped to Fort Gaines, she married General Dill and they built
a fine home with all the money she had saved. The truth of this legend can
be found in Woodward's Reminiscences, Woodward being the man who rescued
Dill's wife from the Indians. In reality the lady had been on an Army
supply boat that was ambushed by the Indians, and she remained a captive for
four months. Another legend about General Dill had to do with the Indians'
great belief in dreams. They believed that if a person dreamed another gave
him a gift, the dream-giver had to make good on the gift or be in serious
trouble with the dream gods. General Dill owned a very handsome saddle made
by a slave that caught the fancy of an Indian chief. He promptly dreamed thg
General Dill gave him the saddle and related the vision to the General, so
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7. Description - page 2

It is hard to visualize what the Dill House must have looked like originally
because of its alterations. The central hall ceiling has been lowered by white
plaster boards held up by heavily varnished beams. A great deal of the house
is beginning to decay badly; the roof leaks in the back part of the house and
floorboards appear weak, and, as already stated, the left half of the second
floor verandah has collapsed.

8. Significance - page 2

the saddle was given to the Indian. Sometime later, General Dill dreamed that
a fine tract of land that he wanted, owned by the Indian Chief, was given to
him. When the Indian heard of the dream he gave the land to Dill saying '"Me
dream no more. White men dream too big."

As questionable as these legends may seem, they are still generally believed
by local residents and play an important part in the local "history" of Fort
Gaines. Because of its early date and the importance that the Fort Gaines
community places on the Dill House, it is worthy of nomination to the National
Register.
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